L2 B I ) R N S B A

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
43
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56

16 Merriff Access Road TOWN OF THORNTON Approved on: 3 (9 2’3

Thornton, NH 03285 PLANNING BOARD PB Initials:

Tel: 603/726-8168 Rec’'d by Town Clerk on: E)Q»?

Fax: 603/726-2078 Planning Board Meetln Minutes Town Clerk Initials: K‘a‘_
Thursday, February 16, 2023

CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Chairman Nancy Decoteau called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL:
Members present at Town Hall: Nancy Decoteau, Chairman; Steven Babin, Vice-Chairman
Frank Freeman; Peter Laufenberg; Donna O’Donnell; David Rivers; Cynthia Schofield; Kathy
Menici, Planning Director; Kerrin Randall, Board Assistant

Alternates present at Town Hall: Jack Gaites
Others present via call-in (partial names are as they appeared via Zoom): None

Others present at Town Hall: Paul Bankosky, Joe Peznola, Shawn Magoon, Jerry Sobolewski,
Tom Duffield, Craig Francisco, Kevin Dorsey, Byron O'Donnell

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Mr. Babin stated that he received an audio recording of the December 15, 2022 meeting and was
invoiced $25.00, which he paid. He stated he has submitted an invoice for reimbursement, as the
recording was for the Planning Board, and asked if the Board supported his actions in submitting for
reimbursement.

Mr. Rivers asked if it was a town policy that audio recordings are $25,00, and Ms. Randall clarified yes:
anyane looking to obtain audio recordings of a meeting has to pay the fee established on the approved
Fee Schedule. Ms. Randall stated the $25.00 is for a secure USB thumb drive that the recordings are
put on. She stated that audio recordings are available until the meeting minutes are approved, as the
written minutes are the official record of the Board meetings.
MOTION: “To authorize the reimbursement of $25.00 to Mr. Babin out of the Equipment
Purchase and Rental line from the Planning Board budget.”

Motion: P. Laufenberg

Second: F. Freeman

Discussion: None

Vote: 6 YES - 0 NO -1 ABSTAIN

Motion passes.

Upon distribution and review of the meeting minutes of December 15, 2022, the members took the
following action:
MOTION: “To accept and approve the Minutes of the Thursday, December 15, 2022 meeting as
amended.”

Motion: P. Laufenberg

Second: F. Freeman

Discussion: None

Vote: 6 YES -0 NO -1 ABSTAIN

Motion passes.

MOTION: “To accept and approve the Minutes of the Thursday, January 19, 2023 meeting as
amended.”

Motion: F. Freeman

Second: D. O'Donnell

Discussion: None
Page 1 of 10




57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
63
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84

85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
85
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110

Vote: 7 YES - 0 NO - 0 ABSTAIN
Motion passes.

COMMUNICATIONS:
Planner Menici shared a “Save the Date" notice for the NH Planning and Zoning Spring meeting. She
stated registration information will be sent out when available.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS:

1. Master Plan Committee — Update
Ms. O'Donnell stated that summaries of the discussion sessions have been given to the Board for
review. She stated the summaries will be included in the Master Plan, and the goal of the Committee is
to have the Master Plan ready for review at the April Planning Board meeting.

2. Sign Proposal for ‘Shamrock Grove’
Ms. O'Donnell recused herself from the Board. Ms. Decoteau sat Mr. Gaites as a voting member.

Ms. O'Donnell, applicant, reviewed the proposed changes to the existing sign for the ‘Shamrock Motel.”
She stated the sign will remain in the same location and will be taller to accommodate aspects of the
rebranding efforts happening.

The Board reviewed the information and graphic proposal presented by the applicant as follows:

1. Sign will be six feet (6' W) by eight feet (8' H) in dimension.

2. Location of the sign will be where the existing sign for the ‘Shamrock Motel’ is located.

3. The sign will not be placed in a manner that will endanger traffic by obscuring views, cause
confusion with official signs, cause glare either by sunshine or artificial lights, or provide a
seasonal visual obstruction during snow season.

4. The sign will not be internally iluminated.

The board agreed the sign, as proposed by the applicant, would be in compliance with the Sign
Regulations.
MOTION: “To recognize that the application meets Thornton’s Sign Regulations and approve
and permit the sign as requested by Byron and Donna O’Donnell for ‘Shamrock Grove'.
Motion: D. Rivers
Second: F. Freeman
Discussion: None
Motion passes: 7 — YES, 0 — NO, 0 — Abstained

Ms. O’'Donnell rejoined the Board and Mr. Gaites stepped off the Board to act as an alternate.

HEARINGS:
1. APPLICATION/PUBLIC HEARING — Subdivision; NH Route 49 [Map 234, Lot 15] Jeffrey
Morey. Subdivide Map 234, Lot 15 into two (2), 1.1 acre lots.
Ms. Decoteau asked the applicant if he had received the Planner Review as well as Recommended
Conditions of Approval and the applicant stated yes. The Board reviewed the application and checklist
to determine completeness.

MOTION: “To accept the application as complete.
Motion: P. Laufenberg
Second: 3. Babin
Discussion: None
Motion passes: 7 — YES, 0 — NO, 0 — Abstained

Ms. Decoteau opened the public hearing at 6:14 p.m.

Page 2 of 10




111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166

Mr. Morey stated he would like to subdivide his 2.2-acre Iot into two (2) lots with a shared driveway. He
stated Mr. Perry, an abutter, relinquished his shared right to use the driveway and the recorded
documents are before the Board to show this. Mr. Morey stated the driveway is now in compliance to
access his proposed subdivided lots.

Ms. Decoteau questioned items on the checklist not being filled in and Planner Menici commented that
she had received a response from the project engineer addressing items noted in her review. She
stated the engineer indicates that all items noted in the Planner Report can and will be addressed and
can be listed as conditions of approval.

Mr. Morey stated he has not applied for State subdivision approval, as he needs to know if the Town
will approve the subdivision first.

Ms. Decoteau questioned the water and sewage on the proposed parcels, and Planner Menici stated 5
the well radii extend into White Mountain Naticnal Forest property. E

Planner Menici commented that the project engineer has recommended that, rather than obtain and ‘
easement from WMNF, a Protected Well Radius Release Form from NHDES can be completed and

recorded; the form acknowledges that current state law does not protect the well beyond the boundary
of the property. She commented that this appears to be a good solution and she would recommend it
rather than obtaining an easement. j

Ms. Decoteau asked for any additional comments from the Board or the Public. No further comments

were given and the public hearing was closed at 6:23 p.m.

MOTION: “To approve the subdivision application with the following conditions:

1. State subdivision approval number to be added to the plan and recording sheet;

2. State septic approval to be obtained prior to the issuance of a ZCA,

3. NHDES Protected Well Radius Release Form to be completed and recorded with note to be
added to the plan and recording sheet to include recording information;

4. Change reference to Proposed Lot 234-53-1 to read Proposed Lot as lot number will be
assigned by assessor.

5. Table to be added to the plat to demonstrate that the Proposed Lot satisfies the buildable acre
reguirements;

6. Update NH DOT driveway permit to reflect exclusion of the parcel identified as Map 234 Lot 54

from the access permit;

Correct notation on plan to read Existing NHDOT Access (See Note 11);

Monumentation to be set on the plat, recording sheet and in the field. Plat to be signed and

stamped by a NH-licensed surveyor;

9. Correct Map and Lot number for the White Mountain National Forest property to read Map 233
Lot 1 (incorrectly labeled Map 234 Lot 45).

10. Planning Board’s legal counsel to review and approve language in "Termination of Easement”
and related note on the plan and recording sheet, at the applicant's expense;

11. Provisions to be added to the deeds and as a note on the plan and recording sheet regarding
the maintenance of the driveway shared by Map 235 Lot 145 and the newly created parcel.
Deed language and note on the plan/recording sheet to be reviewed and approved by the
Planning Board's legal counsel, at the applicant’s expense;

12. Conditions of approval to be added as a note on the plan and recording sheet;

13. Recording sheet requirements:

a. Recording sheet to be to be added to the plan set and to be labeled as such:
b. The following to be deleted from recording sheet: delineation of contours and treelines,
protective well radii, proposed 4k areas, wetlands;

Signature block to be included on the recording sheet:

Note to be added to the recording sheet that states “The complete plan set is on file at the

Town of Thornton Town Offices.”

Motion: F. Freeman
Second: P. Laufenberg
Page 3 of 10 -

o~

oo




167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222

Discussion: None
Motien passes: 7 — YES, 0 — NO, 0 — Abstained

2. Continued APPLICATION/PUBLIC HEARING - Site Plan Review; US Route 3 [Map 227, Lot 2]
Kevin Dorsey for White Mountain Escapes. Construct a residential cluster condominium
subdivision, 18 single family homes with shared common land.

Ms. Schofield and Ms. O'Donnell recused themselves from the Board, as they are abutters. Mr. Gaites
was seated in place of Ms. O'Donnell. s

Ms. Decoteau reconvened the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. and asked Mr. Dorsey if he had received
Planner Menici’s review, and he stated yes.

Planner Menici reviewed that at the last meeting, the Board authorized Mr. Dorsey to begin the third-
party review and, as of tonight, Keach-Nordstrom has not received any plans. She commented that the
primary reason for Mr. Dorsey being present tonight is to get a determination from the Board on waivers
for the paved width of the private road and from the 50-foot ROW requirement.

Mr. Freeman asked for clarification on the road width and ROW requirements. Planner Menici
reviewed that the subdivision regulations state:
SECTION IV GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF LAND
f. TABLE OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
1. Minimum width of right of way 50 ft.
2. Minimum width of roadway (generally centered in R.O.W. shall be 24 ft with 20f
of travel way and 2 ff of shoulders on either side. Shoulders shall be constructed
to the same standards as travel way.

Mr. Dorsey stated he took a step back after the last meeting and contracted Bedford Design
Consultants to review the project; Craig Fransisco is present to speak if needed. Mr, Dorsey reviewed
that he has applied for an AOT permit from the State and the Town has a copy of the application. He
stated updated plans have not been sent to Keach-Nordstrom yet, as he needs a determination of the
requirements for the road and ROW.

Mr. Dorsey stated, currently, a 20-foot-wide road is acceptable for private condominiums, which his
project is. He commented that he wants to have the least amount of impervious surface possible to
preserve the land. Ms. Decoteau asked Mr. Dorsey where in the regulations it states that 20-foot-wide
roads are permitted and Mr. Dorsey stated Planner Menici told him it was permissible with two (2), two
(2) foot shoulders. Planner Menici clarified that the shoulders need to be paved, as the regs state
shoulders shall be constructed to the same standards as travel way; this would be 24-feet total. She
stated the 24-feet of road would be centered within the 50-foot ROW.

Mr. Dorsey questioned who wouid own the land within the 50-foot ROW, as he has never seen this
before in a condominium. He commented that he is selling his house on Fraser Road and moving into
the house currently on the subject property. He stated this is relevant, as he will be residing there, and
he does not want to cause any issues with his neighbors. Mr. Dorsey stated he wants to address the
concerns brought up from neighbors.

Mr. Freeman asked why the house on the subject parcel is listed on MLS; this implies, to Mr. Freeman,
that Mr. Dorsey plans to sell it at some point. Mr. Dorsey clarified that the house is not listed on MLS
as “for sale” but is listed as a marketing tool for the other homes in the development.

Mr. Dorsey asked Mr. Francisco of Bedford Design Consulting to speak on the project. Mr. Francisco
stated he has been with Bedford Design for 30 years and done projects all over New Hampshire. He
reviewed that he has worked on several condominium projects, and he doesn't understand why the
Town wants a 50-foot ROW for a condominium subdivision.

Page 4 0f 10




223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277

Mr. Freeman acknowledged Mr. Francisco's question, but the Board can't answer the question of the
ROW, as it was approved by the Town. A waiver can be requested for the road and ROW, but the
Planning Board cannot change what the governing body of the Town voted to approve.

Mr. Babin stated that Mr. Francisco asked a pertinent question. Mr. Babin asked the Board if the spirit
of the law or the letter of law are what they are concerned with. He stated Fire Chief Defosses has
addressed in his letter that he has no concern with the current paved area from a public safety point.
He commented that the letter of the law is the hang-up with the ROW in question, and that is why the
Planning Board exists, to help with land use.

Ms. Decoteau asked what makes this project unigue from other subdivisions in Thornton who have
adhered to the road width and ROW, and Mr. Francisco stated this project is a condominium with
common land, and the owners will only own their physical home and not the land around it.

Mr. Freeman asked Mr. Francisco why a 50-foot ROW is an issue, but a 40-foot ROW is not, and Mr.
Franscico stated he does not want any ROW to be required, as all common land is owned by the
condominium association. Ms. Decoteau verified that Mr. Franscico does not want a ROW listed at all,
and Mr. Franscico stated yes. Mr. Franscico stated a ROW is just a line on the plan, and the Board
disagreed.

Ms. Schofield, as an abutter, asked if the electric transformers already in place on the lot would be in
non-compliance with the setbacks if the ROW is in place and Mr. Dorsey stated no.

Mr. Franscico stated he does not see the purpose of a ROW for this project, as Mr. Dorsey has said
that the road will remain private, but putting a ROW sets it up for the Town to take it over. A lengthy
discussion of possible scenarios that could pose safety concerns with or without a ROW occurred.

Mr. Dorsey stated there will be restrictive covenants in the Condominium Association documents that
ensure that the road will not be infringed upon.

Ms. Decoteau asked for additional public comment.

Mr. O'Donnell stated that laws are written to be followed and there is no gray area. He commented that
he thinks the only reason Mr. Dorsey does not want the required ROW is so he can fit more houses on
the parcel.

Mr. O'Donnell stated he does not know what will be written in the Condominium Association
documents, but asked if homeowners are going to be permitted to sublet their homes for short term
rentals. He stated if that is allowed, there are going to be cars packed into those driveways and on the
road. Mr. O’'Donnell stated, as he is in the lodging industry, people can be told the maximum number of
guests allowed and they will bring double that number; he has seen it occur.

Mr. O’Donnell stated the ROW requirement was put in place for a reason, and if this project is allowed
to go without one, does it set a precedent for future projects.

Planner Menici commented that there doesn't necessarily have to be a ROW, as some condominiums
depict a private roadway with a width of 50 feet but not labeled as a ROW; the setbacks are set based
on the edge of the 50 feet wide road. This would show on the pian as being in compliance with the
regulations without creating a separate parcel; it would still be part of the condominium.

Mr. Laufenberg commented that the applicant has submitted a waiver for the width of the road and
showing it on the plan in a different way would be their choice.

Mr. Dorsey stated there can be covenants incorporated in the Condominium Association documents
that restrict the number of vehicles allowed to be parked at a house. He commented that if a neighbor

Page 50f 10




278
278
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333

is having a gathering and requires more space, they will have to ask a neighbor and not park on the
road.

Mr. Dorsey stated when he came before the Board a year ago, he stated at the preliminary discussion
that the road would be privately owned by the HOA in perpetuity, and that the 20-foot road with
shoulders was understood.

Mr. Rivers asked Mr. Dorsey if he took what was preliminarily discussed as direction from the Board
and then implemented the building of the road based on your interpretation of what was discussed. Mr.
Dorsey stated yes, and Mr. Rivers asked where the documentation was that gave him permission to
construct the road with those specifications and Mr, Dorsey stated he did not get permission, but it was
discussed at the preliminary meeting. Mr. Dorsey stated there was no way that he or the professionals
working on the project missed the road measurements required.

Ms. Decoteau asked for any additional public comment and there was none.

Ms. Decoteau reviewed that the subdivision regulations state that the shoulders shall be constructed to
the same standards as travel way. Mr. Dorsey stated he has permits for 18 homes and could build
more based on the acreage he owns. He stated he wants to be able to give Mr. Ham and The Suttons
more property, but he doesn’t have to; he wants to be courteous to his neighbors.

Discussion on the waiver request on the 50-foot ROW occurred.
MOTION: “To grant the waiver of SECTION IV, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE
SUBDIVISION OF LAND; I. TABLE OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, 1. Minimum width
of right of way 50 ft. with the following condition:

* Note to be added stating vehicles cannot park within 25-feet of the center line of the

road be added to the plan.”

Motion: P. Laufenberg

Second: D. Rivers

Discussion: None

Motion passes: 6 — YES, 0 — NO, 0 — Abstained

Ms. Decoteau stated no waiver has been submitted for the paving of the shoulders. Mr. Dorsey
confirmed that no waiver has been submitted yet, but there will be one submitted for the next mesting.
Mr. Laufenberg commented that waiver request should be detailed.

Mr. Dorsey asked when the waiver and updated plan would need to be submitted by and Ms. Decoteau
stated the deadline for continued or revised projects is Thursday, March 2, 2023 by 12:00 p.m. Mr.
Dorsey thanked the Board.

MOTION: “To continue the public hearing for Site Plan Review; US Route 3 [Map 227, Lot 2]
Kevin Dorsey for White Mountain Escapes to the March 16, 2023 meeting.”

Motion: P. Laufenberg

Second: F. Freeman

Discussion: None

Vote: 6 YES - 0 NO - 0 ABSTAIN

Motion passes.

Ms. O'Donnell and Ms. Schofield rejoined the Board and Mr. Gaites stepped off the Board to act as an
alternate.

OTHER BUSINESS:
1. Rules of Procedure
i.  Draft Language for Attending Meetings Virtually
Ms. Decoteau reviewed the proposed language to be added to the Rules of Procedure;

Page 6 of 10




334 IV. MEETINGS

335 + ADD to section:

336 a. Meetings may be attended by the public via virtual meeting platform, with the link to the
337 meeting provided on the meeting agenda. Members of the public may signal any intent
338 to comment or ask questions using the SIGNALS tool on the virtual meeting platform.
339 b. Board members may attend meetings, participate in the decision-making process, and
340 participate in roll-call votes via virtual meeting platform; however, a quorum of the Board
341 ' [four (4)] must be present in person to conduct a meeting.

342 ¢. Any member participating via virtual meeting platform shall identify the persons present
343 in the location from which the member is participating.

344

345 Board members participation via virtual meeting platform should be the exception, and,
346 when possible, members should notify the Chair or staff 48-hours in advance if

347 participating via virtual meeting platform.

348  MOTION: “To adopt the proposed language for virtual meeting participation for the Rules of
349  Procedure.”

350 Motion: P. LLaufenberg

351 Second: F. Freeman

352 Discussion: None

353 Vote: 6 YES - 0 NO - 1 ABSTAIN

354 Motion passes.

355

356 ii.  Draft Language for Signing Plats

357  Ms. Decoteau reviewed the proposed language to be added to the Rules of Procedure:
358 X. DECISIONS

359 * ADD to section:

360 4. Upon satisfaction of conditions of approval precedent, the Chairperson shall sign the plat.
361 In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson or other elected member of the
362 Board may sign the plat.

363  MOTION: “To adopt the proposed language for the signing of plats for the Rules of Procedure.”
364 Motion: D. O'Donnell

365 Second: F. Freeman

366 Discussion: Mr. Babin commented that the language presented is how the Board has been
367 operating, and he does not feel that more regulations need to be added to the Rules of

368 Procedure as the RSA already allows for any member of the Board to sign a plat.

369 Vote: 5 YES - 1 NO - 1 ABSTAIN

370 Motion passes.

371

372 2. Discussion of Proposed Amendments to Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations

373 I Continued discussion on Exemption of Certain Projects from Site Plan Review

374  Ms. Decoteau asked for comments on the proposed language, and the Board asked for more time to
375  review before reopening the discussion, Ms. Decoteau asked that the topic be added to the March
376  agenda and asked that members come prepared for discussion.

377

378 ii.  Draft Language for Design Review Addition

379  Planning Menici commented that in reviewing the Rules of Procedure, it was discovered that the

380  Planning Board has Design Review as an option for applicants. She recommended that the proposed
381 language be removed from the Rules of Procedure and added to the Site Plan and Subdivision

382  Regulations:

383

384

385

386 ADD:

387 DESIGN REVIEW PHASE:

388 The applicant may appear at a regular meeting of the Planning Board to engage in nonbinding
Page 7 of 10




389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443

discussions with the Board which involve more specific design and engineering details;
provided, however, that the design review phase may proceed only after identification of and
notice to abutters, holders of conservation, preservation, or agricultural preservation restrictions,
and the general public as required by RSA 676.4, I(d).

Design Review is subject to the following:

1. Applications for a Design Review Phase (676:4, Il (b)) meeting with the Board shall be made on
forms provided by the Board and shall be presented to the Secretary of the Board or the Board's
agent who shall sign and record the date of receipt.

2. Notice shall be given as required in RSA 676:4, | (d) 10 days before such application is submitted
to the Board.

3. The plan shall include at a minimum the following items:

a) A site location map placing the parcel in the larger context of the community;

b) A site survey showing pertinent features of the site:

¢) An indication of any future subdivisions contemplated in or adjacent to the proposal;

d) A topographic map of the area;

e) Any sails information, such as permeability or boring data, that has been gathered; and

f) A sketch showing the proposed layout of lots, structures, parking, streets, and recreation areas:
watercourses; natural features and easements, as applicable.

4. The board shall determine the conclusion of the Design Review Phase process and inform the
applicant of such determination in writing.

Statements made by planning board members during Design Review shall not be the basis for
disqualifying said members or jinvalidating any action taken.

Ms. Decoteau asked for any questions and there were none.
MOTION: “To remove the language for Design Review from the Rules of Procedure and add it to
the Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations.”

Motion: N. Decoteau

Second: F. Freeman

Discussion: None

Vote: 7 YES - 0 NO - 0 ABSTAIN

Motion passes.

Mr. Laufenberg asked if something could be made that shows the process for applicants and the
options they have for coming before the Planning Board: a visual ‘one sheet’. Ms. Randall stated she
will draft something for the Board to review.

li.  Draft Language for Determination of Completeness Process
Ms. Decoteau reviewed the proposed language to be added to the Site Plan and Subdivision
Regulations:

ADD:
Section D. Completed Application

An application for Site Plan Review will not be noticed for public hearing until the
Planning Board reviews and makes a determination regarding the completeness of the
application materials. The determination of completeness will be limited to the review of
the application checklist items only. Any discussion regarding the merits of the
application will not begin until the application is accepted as complete, the application is
noticed in accordance with RSA 676:4, I(d), and the public hearing is formally opened.

Planner Menici asked if there was a possibility of another option for determining completeness that

would not require the application process to be a two (2) month procedure. She stated the process

proposed will achieve the Board's goal of ensuring that applications are complete prior to opening the

public hearing, but cautioned that it would add time to the applicant’s timeline. She asked if the Board

Page 8 of 10




444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499

would like her to research how other municipalities determine completeness before deciding on the
proposed language.

Discussion on potential alternatives occurred. Mr. Laufenberg stated that the current procedure is
causing applicants to have Public Hearings continued anyway, and Ms. O'Donnell agreed, stating that it
is rare that an application gets approved in one meeting and takes two (2) months at a minimum.

Ms. Decoteau stated that if the proposed procedure is adopted, the Board needs to be consistent and
firm in their process; if the application is not complete, the discussion of the proposal needs to stop.

Mr. Babin stated that the Board has commented several times on incomplete applications being
submitted, and perhaps it is the regulations that are causing confusion to the applicants. He referenced
professionals coming before the Board and questioning why applications are incomplete. Mr. Babin
suggested a committee reach out to engineers for feedback on how to ‘clean up' the regulations.

Planner Menici commented that, as time allows, she has been reviewing the regulations for
inconsistencies, conflicts, and lack of clarity. She commented that she does not believe the regulations
are creating problems, and that they are appropriate for a town like Thornton.

Mr. Babin stated he does not disagree with Planner Menici's statement; however, the Town Planner is a
Professional that is coming to a local land use board and a lot of peopie are wondeting what is
happening. He stated property owners do not feel they should be giving up their perceived property
rights, and no one from the Town or Planning Office is reaching out to help them:; letters are sent with
no guidance. Mr. Babin stated anything that applicants say before this Board can be used against them
in the restriction of the use of their land. Mr. Babin stated the Board is not paying attention to the fact
that property owners feel this way.

Planner Menici clarified that her role, as a professional planner, is to advise the public of land use
regulations and zoning; she does not make decisions. She stated that there is no one at the staff level
with the authority to tell applicants that they can or cannot do something; that is the decision of the
Board. '

Ms. Decoteau asked the Board if Planner Menici needs to research other municipalities for their
determinization of completeness procedure and the Board agreed the research was not needed.
MOTION: “To approve the proposed language for the Determination of Completeness Process
to be added to the Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations.”

Motion: P. Laufenberg

Second: S. Babin

Discussion: None

Vote: 7 YES - 0 NO - 0 ABSTAIN

Motion passes.

Mr. Babin stated he was advised by Planning Board Legal Counsel that he could not have direct
communication with them. Mr. Babin stated he then called NHMA free legal counsel and was told that
his question needed to go through Planning Board Legal Counsel. Mr. Babin stated he does not want
to cause a problem but would like clarification on how to contact legal counsel as a Planning Board
member.

Mr. Laufenberg clarified that any member of the Board may contact Legal Counsel, but other Boards
have adopted that the chair makes the determination of who contacts counsel. Ms. Decoteau stated
that, as Chair, she will be the point of contact for Legal Counsel unless she delegates otherwise.
Non-Public pursuant to RSA 91-A: 3, Il (c)
MOTION: “To enter into non-public session pursuant to RSA 91-A: 3, Il: {c) at 8:37 p.m.”
Motion: S. Babin
Seconded: P. Laufenberg

Discussion: Mr. Babin asked ZCO Magoon and Planner Menici to stay for the non-public
Page 8 of 10




500 session.

501 Roll call vote: Nancy Decoteau — yes, Steven Babin — yes, Frank Freeman — yes, Peter
502 Laufenberg — yes, Donna O'Donnell - yes, David Rivers — yes, Cynthia Schofield — yes
503 Motion Passes: 7 - Yes, 0 — No, 0 — Abstained

504

505

506  MOTION: “To exit non-public session pursuant to RSA 91-A: 3, Il; {c) at 9:25 p.m.”
507 Motion: C. Schofield

508 Seconded: P. Laufenberg

509 Discussion: None

510 Roll call vote: Nancy Decoteau — yes, Steven Babin ~ yes, Frank Freeman — yes, Peter
511 Laufenberg — yes, Donna O'Donnell — yes, David Rivers - yes, Cynthia Schofield — yes
512 Motion Passes: 7 - Yes, 0 — No, 0 — Abstained

513

514 ADJOURNMENT:
515  MOTION: “To adjourn at 9:30 p.m.”

516 Motion: P. Laufenberg

517 Second: D. O’'Donnell

518 Discussion: None

519 Vote: 7 YES -0 NO - 0 ABSTAIN
520 Motion passes.

521

522 Respectfully Submitted,

523 Kerrin Randall, Board Assistant
524

Page 10 0f 10




